
 

Democratic Services democratic.services@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

 
 
 

Title: Culture, Recreation & Tourism Cabinet 
Member Meeting 

Date: 24 March 2009 

Time: 4.00pm 

Venue Committee Room 3, Hove Town Hall 

Members: Councillor: 
Smith (Cabinet Member) 

Contact: Caroline De Marco 
Democratic Services Officer 
01273 291063 
caroline.demarco@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

 
The Town Hall has facilities for wheelchair users, 
including lifts and toilets 

 

T  

An Induction loop operates to enhance sound for 
anyone wearing a hearing aid or using a transmitter 
and infra red hearing aids are available for use 
during the meeting.  If you require any further 
information or assistance, please contact the 
receptionist on arrival. 

  

 FIRE / EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
 

If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are 
instructed to do so, you must leave the building by 
the nearest available exit.  You will be directed to 
the nearest exit by council staff.  It is vital that you 
follow their instructions: 
 

• You should proceed calmly; do not run and do 
not use the lifts; 

• Do not stop to collect personal belongings; 

• Once you are outside, please do not wait 
immediately next to the building, but move 
some distance away and await further 
instructions; and 

• Do not re-enter the building until told that it is 
safe to do so. 

 



 

 
 

Democratic Services: Meeting Layout 
 

Public 
Speaker 

Lawyer 

Member 
Speaker 

Councillor 
Smith 

Director 

Democratic 
Services 
Officer 

Member 
Speaker 

Opposition 
Spokes 
person 

 

Officer in 
Attendance 

Officer in 
Attendance 

Officer in 
Attendance 

Officer in 
Attendance 

Members in Attendance 

Officers in Attendance 

Press 

Public Seating 



CULTURE, RECREATION & TOURISM CABINET MEMBER MEETING 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

Part One Page 
 

82. PROCEDURAL BUSINESS  

 (a) Declarations of Interest by all Members present of any personal 
interests in matters on the agenda, the nature of any interest and 
whether the Members regard the interest as prejudicial under the 
terms of the Code of Conduct.  

 
(b) Exclusion of Press and Public - To consider whether, in view of the 

nature of the business to be transacted, or the nature of the 
proceedings, the press and public should be excluded from the 
meeting when any of the following items are under consideration. 

 
NOTE:  Any item appearing in Part 2 of the Agenda states in its 
heading either that it is confidential or the category under which the 
information disclosed in the report is exempt from disclosure and 
therefore not available to the public. 

 
A list and description of the categories of exempt information is 
available for public inspection at Brighton and Hove Town Halls. 

 

 

 

83. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 1 - 8 

 Minutes of the Meeting held on 10 February 2009 (copy attached).  
 

84. CABINET MEMBER'S COMMUNICATIONS  

 

85. ITEMS RESERVED FOR DISCUSSION  

 (a) Items reserved by the Cabinet Member 

(b) Items reserved by the Opposition Spokesperson 

(c) Items reserved by Members, with the agreement of the Cabinet 
Member. 

NOTE: Public Questions, Written Questions from Councillors, Petitions, 
Deputations, Letters from Councillors and Notices of Motion will be 
reserved automatically. 

 

 

86. PETITIONS 9 - 10 

  Report of the Acting Director of Strategy & Governance (copy attached).  
 

87. PUBLIC QUESTIONS  

 (The closing date for receipt of public questions is 12 noon on 17 March 
2009) 

 



CULTURE, RECREATION & TOURISM CABINET MEMBER MEETING 

 
 

 
No public questions received by date of publication. 

 

88. DEPUTATIONS  

 (The closing date for receipt of deputations is 12 noon on 17 March 2009) 
 
No deputations received by date of publication. 

 

 

89. LETTERS FROM COUNCILLORS 11 - 12 

 Proposal for the City’s Libraries – Energy Meters for Loan – Letter from 
Councillor Kitcat (copy attached).  

 

 

90. WRITTEN QUESTIONS FROM COUNCILLORS  

 No written questions have been received.  
 

91. NOTICES OF MOTIONS  

 No Notices of Motion have been received by date of publication.  
 

92. BRIGHTON MUSEUM AND ART GALLERY: CHANGE TO OPENING 
HOURS 

 

 Report of Director of Cultural Services (to be circulated separately).    

 Contact Officer: Janita Bagshawe Tel: 29-2840  
 Ward Affected: All Wards   
 

 

The City Council actively welcomes members of the public and the press to attend its 
meetings and holds as many of its meetings as possible in public.  Provision is also made 
on the agendas for public questions to committees and details of how questions can be 
raised can be found on the website and/or on agendas for the meetings. 
 
The closing date for receipt of public questions and deputations for the next meeting is 12 
noon on the fifth working day before the meeting. 
 
Agendas and minutes are published on the council’s website www.brighton-hove.gov.uk.  
Agendas are available to view five working days prior to the meeting date. 
 
Meeting papers can be provided, on request, in large print, in Braille, on audio tape or on 
disc, or translated into any other language as requested. 
 
For further details and general enquiries about this meeting contact Caroline De Marco, 
(01273 291063, email caroline.demarco@brighton-hove.gov.uk) or email 
democratic.services@brighton-hove.gov.uk  
 

Date of Publication - Monday, 16 March 2009 

 



CULTURE, RECREATION 
AND TOURISM CABINET 
MEMBER MEETING 

Agenda Item 83 
 
Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

 

BRIGHTON & HOVE CITY COUNCIL 
 

CULTURE, RECREATION & TOURISM CABINET MEMBER MEETING 
 

4.00pm 10 FEBRUARY 2009 
 

COMMITTEE ROOM 3, HOVE TOWN HALL 
 

MINUTES 
 

Present: Councillor Smith (Cabinet Member) 
 
Also in attendance: Councillor Davis (Opposition Spokesperson) 
 

 
 

PART ONE 
 
 

70. PROCEDURAL BUSINESS 
 
70a Declarations of Interests 
 
70.1 There were none.    
 
70b Exclusion of Press and Public 
 
70.2 In accordance with section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972 (the Act), the 

Cabinet Member for Culture, Recreation and Tourism considered whether the press and 
public should be excluded from the meeting during an item of business on the grounds 
that it was likely, in view of the nature of the business to be transacted or the nature of 
the proceedings, that if members of the press or public were present during that item, 
there would be disclosure to them of confidential information (as defined in section 
100A(3) of the Act) or exempt information (as defined in section 100(I) of the Act).  

 
70.3 RESOLVED - That the press and public be not excluded from the meeting. 
 
71. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETINGS 
 
71.1 Councillor Davis referred to paragraph 67.8 of the minutes of 20 January 2009 and 

asked if the sustainability report which was to be submitted to the Culture Tourism and 
Enterprise Overview and Scrutiny Committee had been delayed?  The Director of 
Cultural Services replied that this report was on the forward plan for April 2009 but he 
would check on this matter and report back to Councillor Davis.   

 

1



 

 

CULTURE, RECREATION & TOURISM CABINET MEMBER MEETING 10 FEBRUARY 
2009 

71.2 RESOLVED - That the minutes of the Culture, Recreation and Tourism Cabinet Member 
Meetings held on 9 December 2008 and 20 January 2009 be agreed and signed by the 
Cabinet Member.    

 
72. CABINET MEMBER'S COMMUNICATIONS 
 

National Indicator 11 – Engagement in the Arts 
Brighton & Hove 

 
72.1 The Cabinet Member reported that Brighton & Hove was officially one of the most 

actively cultural cities in the UK.  More residents over 16 took part or attended arts 
events here each year than anywhere in the country outside London. 

 
72.2 Brighton & Hove selected ‘NI 11 Engagement in the Arts’ as one of their 35 National 

Indicators.  NI 11 measured the percentage of adults in a LA area who have attended an 
arts event or participated in an arts activity at least three times in the past 12 months in 
their leisure time.  The survey related to people aged 16 and above. 

 
72.3 A national Active People Survey 2 took place in October 2008 asking adults in the 150 

Local Authority areas whether they had attended an arts event or participated in an arts 
activity in the previous 12 months in order to provide a baseline for measuring 
performance. 

 
72.4 From this survey, Brighton & Hove had a current level of adult engagement in the arts of 

61.2% 
This meant the city is in the top decile for engagement in the arts and had: 
§ The highest level nationally outside London 
§ The 7th highest out of 150 local authorities 
§ The highest level, by far, of all of the 24 LAs nationally that have selected NI 11 
§ The highest level in the South East region 

 
72.5 Brighton & Hove would be expected to demonstrate a 3% increase by the final 

assessment in October 2010 and demonstrate an engagement level of 64.2%. There 
would be an interim measurement in October 2009 that would indicate progress. 

 
72.6 A separate national analysis published by ACE in November 2008 in advance of the 

release of the Active People baseline data predicted Brighton & Hove would be two 
deciles lower than it actually was.  The Cabinet Member reported that this meant that 
the sector was reaching people that would not normally engage with the arts and was 
further proof of the quality and vibrancy of the cultural offer to residents and visitors. 

 
Request for Return of Human Remains to Australia 

72.7 The Cabinet Member reported that he had received a letter from the Australian 
Government which informed him that a delegation from the Ngarrindjeri community 
would be visiting Oxford later this year.  The Cabinet Member had agreed to meet with 
the delegation before this matter was considered at the Cabinet Member Meeting.  
Therefore, the report on this matter would be deferred.   

 

2



 

 

CULTURE, RECREATION & TOURISM CABINET MEMBER MEETING 10 FEBRUARY 
2009 

Active for Life Directory Launch 

72.8 The Cabinet Member reported that the Active for Life Directory Launch was held 
recently in Churchill Square and had been a great success.    Active for Life was 
encouraging the public to get involved with sport and recreational activities.    

 Royal Pavilion  
 
72.9 The Cabinet Member reported that he had visited the Royal Pavilion this week to thank 

staff for their hard work during the recent closure when renovation works were carried 
out.   He had never seen so many visitors in the Pavilion on a Saturday.   

 
73. ITEMS RESERVED FOR DISCUSSION 
 
73.1 RESOLVED – That Item 81 be reserved for discussion. 
 
74. PETITIONS 
 
74(i) Petition – Hove Library Opening Hours 
 
74.1 The Cabinet Member considered the following petition presented at Council on 4 

December by Councillor Elgood and signed by 50 people: 
 

“We the undersigned call on Brighton & Hove City Council to open Hove 
Library on Sundays.” 
 

74.2 Councillor Elgood attended the meeting and was pleased to note that Hove Library 
would be opening for half a day on Mondays.  However, he would like this to be 
extended to Sundays.  Sunday was a good time for families to enjoy the resources.  
It was a shame to close the library on a day that could be the busiest day of the 
week.  

 
74.3 The Cabinet Member reported that he was pleased to find that so many people were 

enthusiastic about their library services, and keen to see their local libraries extend 
their opening hours and improve their book stocks. The Libraries Plan, which was 
unanimously supported at full council last month, had set out the commitment to 
continue to improve the city’s Libraries Services, including reviewing community 
libraries opening hours and seeking ways to increase the number of books bought.  
At the Council meeting the Cabinet Member was very pleased to announce the 
proposal to increase the opening hours at Hove Library by opening on Monday 
afternoons. This improvement would include the expansion of children's services at 
Hove Library with introduction of a Homework Club. 
 

73.4 The public access computer facilities across all the city’s public libraries suffered a 
major server failure on 23 December, and were returned to full working order on 20 
January, with a partial service being available in all libraries from 15 January. As 
most of this time was across the holiday period, the number of public access days 
lost was relatively low. As it was a council server that failed, there was no third party 
from which the council could claim compensation. The council very much regretted 

3



 

 

CULTURE, RECREATION & TOURISM CABINET MEMBER MEETING 10 FEBRUARY 
2009 

the disruption to services, and IT and Libraries staff had worked hard to restore the 
system as quickly as possible. 

 
74.5  RESOLVED – That the petition be noted. 

 
 74(ii) Petition – Hove Library Opening Hours 
 
 74.6 The Cabinet Member considered the following petition presented at Council on 29 

January by Councillor Davis and signed by 50 people: 
 
“We the undersigned residents of Goldsmid Ward call upon the Council to 
open Hove’s Carnegie Library on a Monday and to increase the book stock.” 

  
74.7 For response see paragraphs 74.3 and 74.4 above.  
 
74.8  RESOLVED – That the petition be noted. 
 
74(iii) Petition – Opening Hours and book stock – Portslade and Hangleton Libraries  
 
74.9 The Cabinet Member considered the following petition presented at Council on 29 

January by Councillor Hamilton and signed by 72 people: 
 
 “We urge the Council to increase the opening hours and book stock of 

Portslade and Hangleton libraries forthwith.” 
 

74.10 For response see paragraphs 74.3 and 74.4 above.  
  
74.11 RESOLVED – That the petition be noted. 
 
74(iv) Petition – Branch library book stocks and mobile library service 
 
74.12 The Cabinet Member considered the following petition presented at Council on 29 

January by Councillor Carden and signed by 56 people: 
 
 “We, Portslade residents wish to state that the branch libraries are a vital part 

of life and should contain more books and that there should be no cuts to the 
mobile library service.” 

 
74.13 For response see paragraphs 74.3 and 74.4 above.  
 
74.14 RESOLVED – That the petition be noted.  
  
74(v) Petition – Increase in stock and opening hours of Whitehawk and Rottingdean 

Libraries   
 
74.15 To receive the following petition presented at Council on 29 January by Councillor 

Turton and signed by 85 people: 
 

4



 

 

CULTURE, RECREATION & TOURISM CABINET MEMBER MEETING 10 FEBRUARY 
2009 

 “We, the undersigned urge the Council to increase the stock and opening 
hours of White hawk and Rottingdean Libraries as they are an increasingly 
valuable resource in these times.” 

 
74.16 For response see paragraphs 74.3 and 74.4 above.  
 
74.17 RESOLVED – That the petition be noted. 

 
74(vi) To receive the following petition presented at Council on 29 January by Councillor 

Bennett and signed by 49 people: 
 

“We, the undersigned Stanford residents ask the Council to open Hove Library 
on a Monday and increase the library provision in our area.” 

 
74.18 For response see paragraphs 74.3 and 74.4 above.  
 
74.19 RESOLVED – That the petition be noted. 

 
74(vii) To receive the following petition presented at Council on 29 January by Councillor 

Wells and signed by 88 people: 
 

“As residents of Woodingdean, we call upon the Council to honour our part in 
the city’s life by opening our library for longer and increasing its stock before 
much more of the twenty-first century has slipped by.” 

 
74.20 For response see paragraphs 74.3 and 74.4 above.  
 
74.21 RESOLVED – That the petition be noted. 

 
74(viii)To receive the following petition presented at Council on 29 January by Councillor 

Allen and signed by 51 people: 
  

“We request the Council to give a full and frank explanation of the prolonged 
breakdown of all the computers in the library service and to spend the 
compensation money on more books.” 
 

74.22 For response see paragraphs 74.3 and 74.4 above.  
 
74.23 RESOLVED – That the petition be noted. 

 
74(ix) To receive the following petition presented at Council on 29 January by Councillor 

Randall on behalf of Councillor Taylor and signed by 92 people: 
 

“We call upon the Council to make a significant and elegant increase to the 
shelving in the Jubilee Library so that it looks more like a library.” 

 
74.24 For response see paragraphs 74.3 and 74.4 above.  
 
74.25 RESOLVED – That the petition be noted. 
 

5



 

 

CULTURE, RECREATION & TOURISM CABINET MEMBER MEETING 10 FEBRUARY 
2009 

75. PUBLIC QUESTIONS 
 
75.1 There were none. 
 
76. DEPUTATIONS 
 
76.1 There were none. 
 
77. LETTERS FROM COUNCILLORS 
 
77.1 There were none. 
 
78. WRITTEN QUESTIONS FROM COUNCILLORS 
 
78.1 The Cabinet Member reported that one written question had been received from 

Councillor Davis as follows:- 
 

“Could the Cabinet Member update me on the Foredown Tower in relation to 
negotiations with the Sea Cadets for use and upkeep of the building, the application for 
Heritage Lottery funding and plans for the centenary celebrations this year.”  
 

78.2 The Cabinet Member reported that Councillor Davis had been updated on the latest 
position at the Culture Tourism and Enterprise Overview and Scrutiny Committee held 
on 5 February 2009 as follows:-   

 
 Hove and Adur Sea Cadets 
78.3 Meetings have been held with the Hove and Adur Sea Cadets to draw up Heads of 

Terms for the lease of the Tower. These would be sent by the City Council to the Sea 
Cadets in the next few weeks.   

 
78.4 Mike Feist had joined the management committee of the Hove and Adur Sea Cadets 

and was able to provide advice on the Tower as a visitor facility. It was the intention of 
the Cadets to open the Tower as a visitor attraction as well as use it as their base for 
sea cadet training activities. 
 

78.5 The council and the Sea Cadets were continuing to look into the feasibility for the 
establishment of a Community Trust for the Tower. 

 
Astronomy 

78.6 The Foredown Tower Astronomy groups, which was an adult education class had now 
established itself as an astronomical society, Foredown Tower Astronomers. It had its 
inaugural meeting at the Tower on 15th January and now meets at the Tower every 
Thursday of the month. It would continue to meet at the Tower under the new 
arrangements with the cadets.  

  
Centenary 

78.7 The Tower would be opening to the public at the beginning of March.  
A weekend event to mark the centenary was being planned for August and details for 
event were being worked out at present. The Royal Pavilion and Museums was planning 
to work with the rangers and local historians, amongst others on this event. 

6



 

 

CULTURE, RECREATION & TOURISM CABINET MEMBER MEETING 10 FEBRUARY 
2009 

 
78.8 The Astronomers were planning a series of monthly events to mark the Tower’s 

centenary and the International Year of Astronomy. These events were being publicised 
through the museums’ service publicity. There would also be a programme of family 
activities during 2009 which would mark the centenary of the Tower. 

 
78.9 Councillor Davis asked about progress on the negotiations for the lease of the 

Foredown Tower.  The Principal Solicitor explained that he and the Head of Museums & 
Royal Pavilion had met with the council’s internal estates team to discuss the Heads of 
Terms.  He was waiting for amendments to clarify points from the estates team.  The 
Sea Cadets had appointed a lawyer to represent them.  Discussions had gone well with 
the Sea Cadets.  It had been agreed by a previous Cabinet Member Meeting that there 
could be temporary use by the Sea Cadets.   

 
78.10 Councillor Davis asked for clarification on the application to the Lottery Fund.  The 

Director replied that following an application to the Heritage Lottery Fund (HLF), the 
Fund had raised some concerns about capacity to deliver a one year programme, 
particularly alongside the “My Pavilion” heritage project.  It had been decided to work 
with Sea Cadets on a 3 year plan for a revised Heritage Lottery Bid.   

 
79. NOTICES OF MOTIONS 
 
79.1 There were none. 
 
80. REQUEST FOR RETURN OF HUMAN REMAINS TO AUSTRALIA 
 
80.1 It had been noted under Chairman’s Communications that a decision on this item had 

been deferred to a Cabinet Member Meeting later in the year.  (See Paragraph 72.7). 
 
81. PROPOSAL TO INTRODUCE A "GREETER SCHEME" TO THE CITY 
 
81.1 The Cabinet Member considered a report of the Director of Cultural Services which 

explained that a “Greeter Scheme” was a voluntary scheme which welcomed visitors to 
the city in a unique way, by recruiting local residents who were passionate and 
knowledgeable about the city to volunteer and conduct free tours (for copy see minute 
book).   The 2008 Tourism Strategy made a specific recommendation for the 
implementation of a Greeter Scheme.  The scheme would improve visitor experience, 
improve visitor welcome, engage local people in the benefit of tourism and increase take 
up of local people in the benefit of tourism and increase take up of local public transport.   
  

81.2 The Head of Tourism informed the Cabinet Member that the Greeter Scheme was a great 
opportunity, should work very well in Brighton & Hove and was relatively low cost.  The 
Destination Manager explained that the “Greeter Scheme” had been founded in 1992 in 
New York.  Greeters could be recruited from people who were knowledgeable and 
passionate about the city such as members of historical societies.     

 
81.3 Councillor Davis asked how the “Greeters” would be recruited.  The Head of Tourism 

replied that the local media would be used to communicate the nature of the scheme.  
Officers had already engaged with organisations and societies connected with the Blue 
Plaque Scheme.  

7



 

 

CULTURE, RECREATION & TOURISM CABINET MEMBER MEETING 10 FEBRUARY 
2009 

 
81.4 RESOLVED - That the Destination Manager be instructed to undertake detailed research 

on implementing a “Greeter Scheme” within the city, and present the detailed options to a 
Cabinet Member Meeting during the summer 2009. 

 
 

 
The meeting concluded at 4.22pm 

 
Signed 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Chair 

Dated this day of  
 

8



CULTURE, RECREATION 
AND TOURISM CABINET 
MEMBER MEETING 

Agenda Item 86 
 

Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

 

Subject: Petitions 

Date of Meeting: 24 March 2009 

Report of: Acting Director of Strategy & Governance 

Contact Officer: Name:  Caroline De Marco Tel: 29-1063 

 E-mail: caroline.demarco@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

Key Decision: No  

Wards Affected: All  

 

FOR GENERAL RELEASE 
 

1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT: 
 

1.1 To receive the following petition presented at Council on 29 January 2009 and 
any petitions presented directly to the Culture Recreation and Tourism Cabinet 
Member Meeting. 

 
(i) To receive the following petition presented at Council on 29 January 2009 by 

Councillor Barnett and signed by 1104 people: 
 
“We the undersigned petition Brighton & Hove City Council to provide 
£50,000 to enable the refurbishment of the swimming pool at Hangleton 
Junior School.  We further petition that Brighton & Hove City Council note 
that everyone at this school has worked extremely hard to raise money for 
this project and has already raised a contribution of £50,000.” 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 That the petition presented at the Council meeting as detailed above be noted 

and any subsequent action resulting from the nature of the petition be 
determined. 

9



10



CULTURE, RECREATION 
AND TOURISM CABINET 
MEMBER MEETING 

Agenda Item 89 
 
Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

 

From: Jason Kitcat [jason.kitcat@brighton-hove.gov.uk] 
Sent: 03 February 2009 09:14 
To: David Smith 
Cc: Caroline De Marco; Mailing List: Councillors Green 
Subject: Culture, Recreation & Tourism: Letter for Cabinet Member 
Meeting 24th March 2009 
 
Dear Councillor David Smith 
 
I am writing to ask to be able to address your Cabinet Member Meeting on 
24th March 2009 to discuss a proposal for the city's libraries. 
 
With the economic difficulties the country is currently experiencing, the 
cold weather we have been having and energy bills remaining high, I would 
like to propose a simple measure which could help local residents reduce 
their energy use. This would also help them to save money and reduce their 
carbon footprint. 
 
I would like to ask that you consider providing energy meters for loan from 
our city's public libraries. These meters are cheap, durable and very 
portable. They could be provided on loan from our libraries for residents to 
better understand which patterns of use and which of their appliances use 
the most energy. 
 
This is already being done in other public libraries, such as those in 
Ottawa, Canada. 
 
I hope you will consider this idea and I look forward to discussing it with 
you at your meeting. 
 
Sincerely 
 
Cllr Jason Kitcat 
 
cc: Caroline De Marco, Democratic Services Officer 

--  

Cllr Jason Kitcat 

Green City Councillor, Regency Ward 

Brighton & Hove City Council 

    

http://www.jasonkitcat.com 

+ 44 (0) 7956 886 508 

 

 

11



12


	Agenda
	83 Minutes of the previous meeting
	86 Petitions
	89 Letters from Councillors

